

### 2013 DRAFTING REQUEST

**Bill**

Received: 5/3/2013 Received By: rkite  
Wanted: As time permits Same as LRB:  
For: Mary Czaja (608) 266-7694 By/Representing: Emily Loe  
May Contact: Drafter: rkite  
Subject: Nat. Res. - fish and game Addl. Drafters:  
Extra Copies:

Submit via email: YES  
Requester's email: Rep.Czaja@legis.wisconsin.gov  
Carbon copy (CC) to:

**Pre Topic:**

No specific pre topic given

**Topic:**

Create crossbow hunting licenses for residents and nonresidents

**Instructions:**

See attached

**Drafting History:**

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	rkite 5/6/2013	scalvin 5/7/2013	rschluet 5/7/2013	_____			
/1				_____	sbasford 5/7/2013	lparisi 5/8/2013	State

FE Sent For:

→ At Into.

<END>

**2013 DRAFTING REQUEST**

**Bill**

Received: **5/3/2013** Received By: **rkite**  
Wanted: **As time permits** Same as LRB:  
For: **Mary Czaja (608) 266-7694** By/Representing: **Emily Loe**  
May Contact: Drafter: **rkite**  
Subject: **Nat. Res. - fish and game** Addl. Drafters:  
Extra Copies:

Submit via email: **YES**  
Requester's email: **Rep.Czaja@legis.wisconsin.gov**  
Carbon copy (CC) to:

---

**Pre Topic:**

No specific pre topic given

---

**Topic:**

Create crossbow hunting licenses for residents and nonresidents

---

**Instructions:**

See attached

---

**Drafting History:**

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	rkite 5/6/2013	scalvin 5/7/2013	rschluet 5/7/2013	_____			
/1				_____	sbasford 5/7/2013		State

FE Sent For:

<END>

2013 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 5/3/2013 Received By: rkite  
 Wanted: As time permits Same as LRB:  
 For: Mary Czaja (608) 266-7694 By/Representing: Emily Loe  
 May Contact: Drafter: rkite  
 Subject: Nat. Res. - fish and game Addl. Drafters:  
 Extra Copies:

Submit via email: YES  
 Requester's email: Rep.Czaja@legis.wisconsin.gov  
 Carbon copy (CC) to:

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Create crossbow hunting licenses for residents and nonresidents ✓

Instructions:

See attached

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
--------------	----------------	-----------------	--------------	----------------	------------------	-----------------	-----------------

/?	rkite	1/1 sac 05/07/2013	<i>[Handwritten signature]</i>	<i>[Handwritten initials]</i>	_____		
----	-------	-----------------------	--------------------------------	-------------------------------	-------	--	--

FE Sent For:

<END>

## Kite, Robin

---

**From:** Rep. Czaja  
**Sent:** Thursday, May 02, 2013 2:01 PM  
**To:** Kite, Robin  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott  
**Subject:** Sub Amendment to LRB 2272 - crossbows

Robin,

Rep. Czaja is requesting a substitute amendment be drafted to LRB 2272.

After further discussion with interested parties, the two authors have agreed to include a separate license for crossbows. The season will still be concurrent to the full archery season.

Rep. Czaja gives her consent for you to collaborate with Mike Bruhn (DNR Legislation Liaison) and Diane ~~Gravland~~ (DNR Customer Service) on draft language. Upon our initial conversation with Mike and Diane, they asked the following elements be included:

1. The crossbow license included as part of the Conservation Patron License
2. Stand-alone crossbow license, cost \$24.00
3. Add-on crossbow license (upon prior purchase of a bowhunting license), cost \$3.00
4. Add-on bowhunt license (upon prior purchase of a crossbow license), cost \$3.00
5. It is the individual license only, there will be no additional carcass tags delivered

I have copied Scott Rausch from Sen. Farrow's office on this email; he will be making an identical request for the Senate companion bill.

Thank you,

Emily

*Emily Loe*

**Office of Rep. Mary Czaja | 35<sup>th</sup> Assembly District**  
Wisconsin State Capitol – Room 15 West  
P.O. Box 8952 | Madison, WI 53708  
P: 608.266.7695 | F: 608.282.3635 | E: [eloe@legis.wi.gov](mailto:eloe@legis.wi.gov)

*Per Emily - will not be introducing this bill draft - so I will enter a request for a new bill*

# "RESEARCH APPENDIX"

... Drafting History Reproduction Request Form ...

 DRAFTING ATTORNEYS: PLEASE COMPLETE THIS FORM AND GIVE TO MIKE BARMAN

(Request Made By: RNK) (Date: 5/6/13)

## Note:

**BOTH DRAFTS SHOULD HAVE THE SAME "REQUESTOR"**

(exception: companion bills)



 Please transfer the drafting file for  
**2011 LRB** \_\_\_\_\_ (For: Rep./ Sen. \_\_\_\_\_)  
to the drafting file for  
**2013 LRB** \_\_\_\_\_ (For: Rep./ Sen. \_\_\_\_\_)

*Don't*

-----OR-----

 Please copy the drafting file for  
**2013 LRB-1080** 11 (include the version) (For:  Rep./ Sen. Tauchen then Farrow)  
and place it in the drafting file for  
**2013 LRB -2304** \_\_\_\_\_ (For:  Rep./ Sen. Czaja)

 Are These "Companion Bills" ?? ... Yes  No

If yes, who in the initial requestor's office authorized the copy/transfer of the drafting history ("guts") from the original file: \_\_\_\_\_

5/3

Tel. conf. w/ DPR:

Mike Bruhn

Deane Brookbank 267-7799

Crossbow fees (res. & nonres. etc) should be same as archery licenses

do not include X-bow in provision re: reduced fees for first time approval because they will all be first time approvals

"add-on" - do not make this a permit - The licensee will actually get a 2d license -

so, eg, if a person has a resident archer hunting license he or she need only pay \$3.00 to also get a resident X-bow license

discussed hunter education -

Mike Bruhn said that the licensee (X-bow) would need hunter ed. - he will get back to me about which program etc.

when hunter gets \$3.00 license, he/she does not get an additional tag

## Kite, Robin

---

**From:** Loe, Emily  
**Sent:** Monday, May 06, 2013 1:48 PM  
**To:** Kite, Robin  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott; Bruhn, Michael L - DNR  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow bill draft

Yes, that sounds good. Please proceed.

Emily

---

**From:** Kite, Robin  
**Sent:** Monday, May 06, 2013 1:29 PM  
**To:** Loe, Emily  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott; Bruhn, Michael L - DNR  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow bill draft

Emily:

I also wanted to let you know that I talked to Mike and Tim Lawhern from DNR this morning about hunter education. They recommended that, as with other hunting licenses, a crossbow license should require a person to take a hunter education course or a bow hunter education course (unless the person was born before January 1, 1973 as in current law). They said that they do not think it is necessary to specifically provide in the statutes that these programs must include safety information about crossbows. Unless I hear otherwise from you, I will proceed on this basis.

Robin

---

**From:** Loe, Emily  
**Sent:** Monday, May 06, 2013 12:20 PM  
**To:** Bruhn, Michael L - DNR; Kite, Robin  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow bill draft

Ah I see, ok makes sense to me.

Maybe I misunderstood the question? Let's proceed with what Mike said.

Emily

---

**From:** Bruhn, Michael L - DNR [<mailto:Michael.Bruhn@wisconsin.gov>]  
**Sent:** Monday, May 06, 2013 12:11 PM  
**To:** Loe, Emily; Kite, Robin  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow bill draft

Emily,

The reason you do not want to have the new crossbow license qualify for the 1<sup>st</sup> time buyer is that it is a new license, and thus every license sold would qualify as a first time buyer. People could buy a crossbow first-time buyer for \$5; do the \$3 add-on (\$8 total for a \$24 license), and never intend to use the crossbow. You won't get

an accurate number of people who actually intend to use the crossbow, and the hit to the fish and game account would be very large.

Thanks!

Michael Bruhn  
Legislative Liaison  
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources  
(☎) phone: (608) 266-5375  
(✉) e-mail: [michael.bruhn@wisconsin.gov](mailto:michael.bruhn@wisconsin.gov)  
Website: [dnr.wi.gov](http://dnr.wi.gov)  
Find us on Facebook: [www.facebook.com/WIDNR](http://www.facebook.com/WIDNR)

---

**From:** Loe, Emily [<mailto:Emily.Loe@legis.wisconsin.gov>]  
**Sent:** Monday, May 06, 2013 12:05 PM  
**To:** Kite, Robin - LEGIS  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott - LEGIS; Bruhn, Michael L - DNR  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow bill draft

Robin,

To answer your questions:

- To my mind, it would be a good idea to have a provision for reduced fee of first time crossbow licensees – providing the same incentive for those new licensees, as any other weapon. Could that provision be added to this draft?
- I would also say that yes, the indicating on carcass tag requirement should be kept.

Mike and Scott may be able to offer more insight. I will double-check with Rep. Czaja tomorrow, but with the above answers I think the draft should be ready to proceed.

Thank you

Emily  
6-7695

---

**From:** Kite, Robin  
**Sent:** Monday, May 06, 2013 10:59 AM  
**To:** Loe, Emily  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott; Bruhn, Michael L - DNR  
**Subject:** Crossbow bill draft

Emily:

As you know, I spoke with Mike Bruhn and Diane Brookbank from DNR last week to get more information about the bill draft I am working on for your office. The draft will, among other things, create resident and nonresident licenses for crossbow users. I am waiting for more information from Mike about whether to require crossbow licensees to complete a course of instruction in hunter education, and if so, whether this will be part of the existing program or whether this will be a new and separate program.

After discussing the draft with Mike and Diane, they instructed me to do the following:

1. Provide that if a person is issued an archer hunting license, that person may, for an additional fee of \$3.00, obtain an crossbow hunting license for the same season. Similarly, if the person is issued a crossbow hunting license, that person may, for an additional fee of \$3.00, obtain an archer hunting license for the same season. In other words, the "add-on" fee allows the person to get a second license rather than creating a new type of permit.
2. Mike and Diane said that all of the relevant fees for the crossbow licenses should be the same as the fees for archer licenses under current law.
3. Mike and Diane also said that a person should not be able to get the crossbow license at the reduced fee that generally applies to first time licensees under current law because all of the crossbow licenses will be "first time" licenses in the first season after the bill becomes law. You may wish to consider drafting a provision that establishes a reduced fee for first time crossbow licensees with a delayed effective date so that beginning, for example, in fiscal year 2014-15, first time crossbow licensees would be entitled to a reduced fee.

I do have an additional question. Do you want to keep the requirement that a person must indicate on a carcass tag what type of weapon was used to kill the animal?

As soon as I have answers to the outstanding questions, I will be able to finish the draft. Let me know if you have any questions.

Robin

-----  
Robin N. Kite  
Senior Legislative Attorney  
Wisconsin Legislative Reference Bureau  
1 E. Main St., Suite 200  
Madison, WI 53703  
(608) 266-7291

## Kite, Robin

---

**From:** Bruhn, Michael L - DNR <Michael.Bruhn@wisconsin.gov>  
**Sent:** Friday, May 03, 2013 2:17 PM  
**To:** Rausch, Scott; Loe, Emily; Kite, Robin  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow drafting request

1 and 2 are... we are working through #3.

Michael Bruhn  
Legislative Liaison  
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources  
(☎) phone: (608) 266-5375  
(✉) e-mail: [michael.bruhn@wisconsin.gov](mailto:michael.bruhn@wisconsin.gov)  
Website: [dnr.wi.gov](http://dnr.wi.gov)  
Find us on Facebook: [www.facebook.com/WIDNR](http://www.facebook.com/WIDNR)

---

**From:** Rausch, Scott [<mailto:Scott.Rausch@legis.wisconsin.gov>]  
**Sent:** Friday, May 03, 2013 2:16 PM  
**To:** Loe, Emily - LEGIS; Kite, Robin - LEGIS; Bruhn, Michael L - DNR  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow drafting request

I believe that the answers Emily has provided are correct. Please proceed with her request.

---

**From:** Loe, Emily  
**Sent:** Friday, May 03, 2013 2:15 PM  
**To:** Kite, Robin; Bruhn, Michael L - DNR  
**Cc:** Rausch, Scott  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow drafting request

Robin,

1. Yes, fee of \$23.25 for a total of \$24.00
2. Yes, fee of \$2.25 for a total of \$3.00
3. I think the term "permit" would be fine? I am also copying Scott Rausch from Sen. Farrow's office on this, so that he and Mike can advise.

Emily

---

**From:** Kite, Robin  
**Sent:** Friday, May 03, 2013 1:21 PM  
**To:** Bruhn, Michael L - DNR; Loe, Emily  
**Subject:** RE: Crossbow drafting request

These "licenses" for statutory purposes are not "separate" licenses. That is, there are reduced fees for many hunting licenses under current law but the underlying license is the same in the statutes. The only issue that must be addressed in the draft, aside from the creation of a resident crossbow license and a nonresident crossbow license, are the relevant fees.

1. The drafting request specified a fee for the crossbow license of \$24. I assume that this is the fee for residents only and that the fee should actually be \$23.25 because there is a 75 cent issuing fee under

current law that would bring the total to \$24.00. See s. 29.563 (14) (c), stats. Are my assumptions correct? If so, what fee do you want for the nonresident crossbow license?

2. Am I correct in assuming that there will be a 75 cent issuing fee for the "add-on" to a crossbow license or archery license and that, therefore, the fee for the "add-on" should be \$2.25?
3. I assume that DNR will issue some kind of approval for the "add-on". At this point, I think it makes sense to call it a "permit". So, for example, if a person holds an archery license but decides later in the license year to hunt with a crossbow, then he or she can get, upon application and payment of the fee, a "crossbow permit" that allows the license holder to use a crossbow in addition to a bow and arrow for the remainder of the license period. Do you agree?

Robin

---

**From:** Bruhn, Michael L - DNR [<mailto:Michael.Bruhn@wisconsin.gov>]

**Sent:** Friday, May 03, 2013 12:08 PM

**To:** Kite, Robin

**Cc:** Loe, Emily

**Subject:** RE: Crossbow drafting request

- i. Resident Crossbow
- ii. Resident Junior Crossbow
- iii. Nonresident Crossbow
- iv. Nonresident Jr. Crossbow
- v. NR WI Student Crossbow
- vi. NR WI Student Jr. Crossbow
- vii. NR Military Crossbow
- viii. Duplicate Crossbow with tags
- ix. Duplicate Crossbow without Tags
- b. If new buyer and mentored licenses were included, creation of the following license types
  - i. Resident Crossbow New Buyer
  - ii. Resident Junior Crossbow New Buyer
  - iii. Nonresident Crossbow New Buyer
  - iv. Nonresident Jr. Crossbow New Buyer
  - v. Duplicate Crossbow New Buyer
  - vi. 10-11 Year Old Mentored Crossbow
  - vii. Replacement 10-11 Year Old Mentored Crossbow

Michael Bruhn

Legislative Liaison

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

(☎) phone: (608) 266-5375

(✉) e-mail: [michael.bruhn@wisconsin.gov](mailto:michael.bruhn@wisconsin.gov)

Website: [dnr.wi.gov](http://dnr.wi.gov)

Find us on Facebook: [www.facebook.com/WIDNR](http://www.facebook.com/WIDNR)

---

**From:** Kite, Robin [<mailto:Robin.Kite@legis.wisconsin.gov>]

**Sent:** Friday, May 03, 2013 11:44 AM

**To:** Bruhn, Michael L - DNR

**Cc:** Loe, Emily - LEGIS

**Subject:** Crossbow drafting request

Mike:

When I talked to you yesterday about the crossbow drafting request I am working on for Rep. Czaja, you indicated that the new crossbow licenses would affect numerous other hunting licenses under current law. I'm not sure which licenses you were referring to. Do you have a list that you could send me?

Thanks.

Robin

-----

Robin N. Kite

Senior Legislative Attorney

Wisconsin Legislative Reference Bureau

1 E. Main St., Suite 200

Madison, WI 53703

(608) 266-7291



Wanted: Wed. 5/8  
State of Wisconsin  
2013 - 2014 LEGISLATURE



RM  
not run  
2304/1

LRB-2272/1  
RNK:sac:im

# 2013 BILL

regen. cat.

1 AN ACT to repeal 29.171 (2m), 29.171 (4) (a), 29.171 (4) (c) and 29.216 (2m); to  
 2 renumber and amend 29.014 (1m), 29.193 (1m) (a) and 29.193 (2) (cr) 2.; to  
 3 amend 29.024 (3), 29.024 (9), 29.171 (2), 29.216 (2) and 29.592 (3); and to  
 4 create 29.193 (1m) (a) 1. and 29.193 (1m) (a) 2. of the statutes; relating to: the  
 5 authority to hunt certain animals with a crossbow and information required to  
 6 be included on certain hunting license applications and certain hunting tags.

INS.  
1-5

### Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

INS. ANALYSIS

Under current law, the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) issues hunting licenses that allow the hunting of specified game animals. Most of those licenses authorize the holder of the license to hunt with a bow and arrow, firearm, or crossbow. DNR also establishes open hunting seasons during which it may restrict a license holder to the use of only a certain weapon. Current law also provides that if DNR establishes an open season for hunting deer, elk, small game, wild turkey, or bear with a bow and arrow only, it may not open that season for hunting with a crossbow except by a person who is disabled and holds an appropriate permit from DNR or by a person who is at least 65 years old.

This bill provides that if DNR opens a season for hunting deer, elk, small game, wild turkey, or bear with the use of a bow and arrow, DNR may not prohibit a person from hunting with a crossbow during that open season. The bill eliminates the requirement that a person be disabled or at least 65 years old in order to hunt with

**BILL**

~~a crossbow during that open bow and arrow season.~~ The bill also requires a person who applies for a deer hunting license to indicate on the license application whether the applicant intends to use a bow and arrow or a crossbow to hunt deer under the authority of that license.

FE-S →

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

1           **SECTION 1.** 29.014 (1m) of the statutes is renumbered 29.015 and 29.015 (2),  
2 as renumbered, is amended to read:

3           29.015 (2) If the department establishes an open season for hunting deer, elk,  
4 small game, wild turkey, or bear with a bow and arrow but not with a firearm, the  
5 department ~~may not~~ shall also open that season for hunting with a crossbow ~~except~~  
6 ~~by a person who has attained the age of 65 or by a person who is authorized to hunt~~  
7 ~~with a crossbow by a permit issued under s. 29.171 (4) (a) or 29.193 (2).~~

8           **SECTION 2.** 29.024 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           29.024 (3) FORM OF APPLICATION. The application for an approval shall be on the  
10 form and contain the information required by the department and ~~no.~~ The  
11 department shall require that every person who applies for a hunting approval under  
12 this chapter that authorizes hunting deer with a bow and arrow or crossbow indicate  
13 on the application whether the applicant intends to use a bow and arrow or a  
14 crossbow to hunt deer under the authority granted by the approval. The department  
15 may not issue an approval may be issued until the applicant complies with these  
16 requirements.

17           **SECTION 3.** 29.024 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

18           29.024 (9) TAGS. The department shall provide all tags required under this  
19 chapter and shall specify their form and numbering. If the department requires a

INS.  
2-16

**BILL**

1 person who kills a game animal to attach a tag to the carcass of that animal, the  
2 person shall specify on the tag the type of weapon used to kill the animal.

3 SECTION 4. 29.171 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 29.171 (2) A resident archer hunting license authorizes the hunting of all  
5 game, except bear, elk, and wild turkey, during the open seasons established by the  
6 department for hunting that game with bow and arrow established by the  
7 department. This license authorizes hunting with a bow and arrow only, unless  
8 hunting with a crossbow is authorized by a Class A, Class B, or Class C permit  
9 issued under s. 29.193 (2) or a permit issued under sub. (4).

10 SECTION 5. 29.171 (2m) of the statutes is repealed.

11 SECTION 6. 29.171 (4) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

12 SECTION 7. 29.171 (4) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

13 SECTION 8. 29.193 (1m) (a) of the statutes is renumbered 29.193 (1m) (a) (intro.)  
14 and amended to read:

15 29.193 (1m) (a) The department shall, after an investigation and without  
16 charging a fee, issue a trolling permit to any person who meets ~~the~~ any of the  
17 following requirements under s. 29.171 (4) (a) 2. or 4.:

18 SECTION 9. 29.193 (1m) (a) 1. of the statutes is created to read:

19 29.193 (1m) (a) 1. Has an amputation or other loss of one or more arms above  
20 the wrist.

21 SECTION 10. 29.193 (1m) (a) 2. of the statutes is created to read:

22 29.193 (1m) (a) 2. Has a permanent substantial loss of function in one or both  
23 arms or one or both hands and fails to meet the minimum standards of any one of the  
24 following standard tests, administered under the direction of a licensed physician or  
25 a licensed chiropractor:

INS.  
3-10

INS.  
3-12

**BILL**

1 a. Upper extremity pinch.

2 b. Grip.

3 c. Nine-hole peg.

4 **SECTION 11.** 29.193<sup>x</sup> (2) (cr) 2. of the statutes is renumbered 29.193 (2) (cr) 2.

5 (intro.) and amended to read:

6 29.193 (2) (cr) 2. (intro.) A Class A permit authorizes the holder to shoot do all  
7 of the following:

8 a. Shoot or hunt from a stationary vehicle, ~~to fish.~~

9 b. Fish or troll as authorized under sub. (1m) (b) ~~and to hunt certain game with~~  
10 ~~a crossbow as authorized under ss. 29.171 (2) and 29.216 (2).~~

11 **SECTION 12.** 29.216<sup>x</sup> (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 29.216 (2) The nonresident archer hunting license authorizes the hunting of  
13 all game, except bear, elk, wild turkey, and fur-bearing animals, during the open  
14 season for the hunting of that game with a bow and arrow. ~~This license authorizes~~  
15 ~~hunting with a bow and arrow only unless hunting with a crossbow is authorized by~~  
16 ~~a Class A, Class B, or Class C permit issued under s. 29.193 (2).~~

17 **SECTION 13.** 29.216 (2m) of the statutes is repealed.

18 **SECTION 14.** 29.592<sup>v</sup> (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 29.592 (3) A person who is authorized to hunt with a mentor under this section  
20 and a mentor under this section with whom that person hunts may jointly have only  
21 one firearm, only one bow, or if only one crossbow is authorized under  
22 ~~s. 29.171 (4) or 29.193 (2), only one crossbow~~ in their possession or control while  
23 hunting.

24 (END)

INS.  
4-17

2013-2014 DRAFTING INSERT  
FROM THE  
LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU

LRB-2304/Plains  
RNK:.....

11 ins.

INSERT 1-5

X X establishing (seasons open) for hunting with a crossbow,

INSERT ANALYSIS

Under current law, the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) issues hunting licenses and establishes open hunting seasons that allow the hunting of specified game animals. Among the licenses that DNR issues are resident and nonresident archer hunting licenses. An archer hunting license allows the holder to hunt all game, except bear, elk, and wild turkey, with a bow and arrow during the relevant open season established by DNR. An archer hunting license allows a person to hunt only with a bow and arrow and not with a crossbow unless the person is disabled and holds a permit from DNR that authorizes the use of a crossbow or unless the person is at least 65 years old. This bill eliminates the age and disability requirements for using a crossbow. Instead, the bill establishes a new resident crossbow hunting license and a new nonresident crossbow hunting license.

The crossbow hunting licenses established in this bill allow a license holder to use a crossbow to hunt the same game animals that may be hunted under current law with an archer hunting license. The bill also allows the holder of an archer hunting license to obtain a crossbow hunting license at a substantially reduced fee and allows the holder of a crossbow hunting license to obtain an archer hunting license at a substantially reduced fee. As with other hunting licenses under current law, a person may not obtain a crossbow hunting license unless the person completes a course of instruction in hunter education or bow hunter education.

2

INSERT 2-16

3 SECTION 1. 29.014 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 29.014 (1m) (b) If the department establishes an open season for hunting deer,  
5 elk, small game, wild turkey, or bear with a bow and arrow but not with a firearm,  
6 the department ~~may not~~ shall also open that season for hunting with a crossbow

1 ~~except by a person who has attained the age of 65 or by a person who is authorized~~  
2 ~~to hunt with a crossbow by a permit issued under s. 29.171 (4) (a) or 29.193 (2).~~

History: 1997 a. 248 ss. 77 to 79, 383, 397, 399; 2011 a. 252.

INSERT 3-10

3 SECTION 2. 29.171 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 29.171 (3) (a) and amended  
4 to read:

5 29.171 (3) (a) ~~The~~ Except as provided under par. (b), the department shall issue  
6 to each person who is issued a resident archer hunting license a deer tag and a back  
7 tag.

History: 1973 c. 90 s. 538; 1977 c. 232; 1979 c. 34; 1983 a. 27; 1985 a. 270; 1987 a. 353; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 77; 1995 a. 293; 1997 a. 27, 168; 1997 a. 248 ss. 231 to 235; Stats. 1997 s. 29.171; 1997 a. 249 s. 25; 1999 a. 32; 2001 a. 18, 109; 2005 a. 285, 387; 2009 a. 119; 2011 a. 169, 252; s. 13.92 (2) (i); s. 35.17 correction in (4) (b) (intro.).

8 SECTION 3. 29.171 (3) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

9 29.171 (3) (b) The department may not issue a deer tag or back tag to a person  
10 who is issued a resident archer hunting license at the reduced fee under s. 29.563 (2)

11

(b) 6m

INSERT 3-12

12 SECTION 4. 29.172 of the statutes is created to read:

13 29.172 Resident crossbow hunting license. (1) A resident crossbow  
14 hunting license shall be issued subject to ss. 29.024 and 54.25 (2) (c) 1. d. by the  
15 department to any resident applying for this license.

16 (2) A resident crossbow hunting license authorizes the hunting of all game,  
17 except bear, elk, and wild turkey, during the open seasons for hunting that game with  
18 a crossbow established by the department. This license authorizes hunting with a  
19 crossbow only.

1 (3) (a) Except as provided under par. (b), the department shall issue to each  
2 person who is issued a resident crossbow hunting license a deer tag and a back tag.

3 (b) The department may not issue a deer tag or back tag to a person who is  
4 issued a resident crossbow hunting license at the reduced fee under s. 29.563 (2) (a)

5

8x

6 SECTION 5. 29.185 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 29.185 (2) (b) ~~Resident archer~~ Archer licenses, crossbow licenses, and trapping  
8 licenses. Notwithstanding ss. 29.171 (2), 29.172 (2), 29.216 (2), 29.217 (2), and 29.241  
9 (3), a resident archer hunting license, a nonresident archer hunting license, a  
10 resident crossbow hunting license, a nonresident crossbow hunting license, or a  
11 trapping license does not authorize the hunting or trapping of wolves.

History: 2011 a. 169; s. 35.17 corrections in (3) (bn) 3. and (c) and (5) (c) (intro.).

INSERT 4-17

12 SECTION 6. 29.216 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 29.216 (3) (a) and amended  
13 to read:

14 29.216 (3) (a) DEER TAG AND BACK TAG. The Except as provided under par. (b),  
15 the department shall issue to each person who is issued a nonresident archer  
16 hunting license a deer tag and a back tag.

History: 1983 a. 27; 1985 a. 270; 1991 a. 39; 1997 a. 27; 1997 a. 248 ss. 277 to 280; Stats. 1997 s. 29.216; 1997 a. 249 s. 33; 1999 a. 32; 2001 a. 109; 2009 a. 48, 119.

17 SECTION 7. 29.216 (3) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

18 29.216 (3) (b) The department may not issue a deer tag or back tag to a person  
19 who is issued a nonresident archer hunting license if the department issues the  
20 nonresident archer hunting license at the reduced fee under s. 29.563 (2) (b) 6m

20

g

21 SECTION 8. 29.217 of the statutes is created to read:

1           **29.217 Nonresident crossbow hunting license. (1) ISSUANCE.** A  
2 nonresident crossbow hunting license shall be issued subject to s. 29.024 by the  
3 department to any nonresident applying for this license.

4           **(2) AUTHORIZATION.** The nonresident crossbow hunting license authorizes the  
5 hunting of all game, except bear, elk, wild turkey, and fur-bearing animals, during  
6 the open season for the hunting of that game with a crossbow.

7           **(3) DEER TAG AND BACK TAG.** (a) The department shall issue to each person who  
8 is issued a nonresident crossbow hunting license a deer tag and a back tag.

9           (b) The department may not issue a deer tag or back tag to a person who is  
10 issued a nonresident crossbow hunting license at the reduced fee under s. 29.563 (2)

11

(a) 8r

g

12           **SECTION 9.** 29.235<sup>x</sup> (2) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:

13           29.235 (2) (dm) A resident crossbow hunting license.

14           **SECTION 10.** 29.235<sup>x</sup> (2m) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:

15           29.235 (2m) (dm) A nonresident crossbow hunting license.

16           **SECTION 11.** 29.563<sup>x</sup> (2) (a) 8r. of the statutes is created to read:

17           29.563 (2) (a) 8r. Crossbow: \$21.25.

18           **SECTION 12.** 29.563<sup>x</sup> (2) (b) 6m. of the statutes is created to read:

19           29.563 (2) (b) 6m. Crossbow: 157.25.

20           **SECTION 13.** 29.563<sup>x</sup> (2g) of the statutes is created to read:

21           29.563 (2g) **REDUCED FEES FOR CERTAIN ARCHER AND CROSSBOW LICENSES.**

22           Notwithstanding the fees under sub. (2) (a) 8. and 8r. and (b) 6. and 6m., the fee is  
23 \$2.25 for any of the following licenses:

24           (a) A resident archer hunting license issued to a person who holds a resident  
25 crossbow hunting license, provided that the resident archer hunting license and the

1 resident crossbow hunting license authorize hunting during the same hunting  
2 season.

3 (b) A nonresident archer hunting license issued to a person who holds a  
4 nonresident crossbow hunting license, provided that the nonresident archer hunting  
5 license and the nonresident crossbow hunting license authorize hunting during the  
6 same hunting seasons.

7 (c) A resident crossbow hunting license issued to a person who holds a resident  
8 archer hunting license, provided that the resident crossbow hunting license and the  
9 resident archer hunting license authorize hunting during the same hunting season.

10 (b) A nonresident crossbow hunting license issued to a person who holds a  
11 nonresident archer hunting license, provided that the nonresident crossbow hunting  
12 license and the nonresident archer hunting license authorize hunting during the  
13 same hunting seasons.

14 **SECTION 14.** 29.563<sup>x</sup> (6m) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 **29.563 (6m) REDUCED FEES FOR CERTAIN FIRST-TIME APPROVALS.** (a) The fee for  
16 an approval that is listed under sub. (2) (a) 1., 2., 4. to 5g., ~~or 7. to 9.~~ 8m., or 9., (3)  
17 (a) 1., or (6) (a) 1. is \$4.25 if the approval is issued to a person who has not received  
18 that type of approval, or has not been conferred the privileges of that type of approval  
19 under a license issued under s. 29.231 or 29.235, in any of the 10 years preceding the  
20 date of application.

21 (b) The fee for an approval listed under sub. (2) (b) 1., 3., ~~or 5. to~~ 6., 7., 8., (3) ~~★~~  
22 (b) 1., or (6) (am) is one-half of the fee listed for the respective approval, rounded up  
23 to the nearest dollar, if the approval is issued to a person who has not received that  
24 type of approval by the department, or has not been conferred the privileges of that

1 type of approval under a license issued under s. 29.231 or 29.235, in any of the 10  
2 years preceding the date of application.

**History:** 1997 a. 248; 1999 a. 9, 32, 47, 63, 186; 2001 a. 16, 17, 56, 109; 2003 a. 33; 2005 a. 22, 25, 55, 284, 288; 2007 a. 20; 2009 a. 28, 39, 364; 2011 a. 168, 169, 209;  
s. 13.92 (1) (bm) 2.

3 **SECTION 15. 29.563 (12) (a) 2.** of the statutes is amended to read:

4 29.563 (12) (a) 2. Archer, crossbow, sports, or conservation patron: \$14.25 if  
5 deer tags are included; \$11.25 after open season and deer tags are not included.

**History:** 1997 a. 248; 1999 a. 9, 32, 47, 63, 186; 2001 a. 16, 17, 56, 109; 2003 a. 33; 2005 a. 22, 25, 55, 284, 288; 2007 a. 20; 2009 a. 28, 39, 364; 2011 a. 168, 169, 209;  
s. 13.92 (1) (bm) 2.

**Barman, Mike**

---

**From:** Loe, Emily  
**Sent:** Wednesday, May 08, 2013 2:49 PM  
**To:** LRB.Legal  
**Subject:** Draft Review: LRB -2304/1 Topic: Create crossbow hunting licenses for residents and nonresidents

Please Jacket LRB -2304/1 for the ASSEMBLY.

*Emily Loe*

**Office of Rep. Mary Czaja | 35<sup>th</sup> Assembly District**

Wisconsin State Capitol – Room 15 West

P.O. Box 8952 | Madison, WI 53708

P: 608.266.7695 | F: 608.282.3635 | E: [elo@legis.wi.gov](mailto:elo@legis.wi.gov)